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HARDYVILLE, ARIZONA 
 

In March 1864, the current site of Bullhead City 
was the location of a settlement called Hardyville. It 
was named for early resident and politician William 
Harrison Hardy. A New York native and an 
entrepreneur, Hardy established, with the support 
of George Alonzo Johnson's Colorado Steam 
Navigation Co., a ferry service and a steamboat 
landing. He also built and owned the Hardyville - 
Prescott Road, a toll road from Hardyville to the 
new Arizona territorial capital of Prescott and 
raised Angora goats. He was a colorful and 
somewhat controversial figure. He was the town's 
first postmaster from January 17, 1865, and is 

credited with the invention of the riveted mail sack. He was also a Mohave 
County supervisor and a member of the Arizona Territorial Legislature. In 
1864 his personal worth was over $40,000, making him the second-richest 
man in Arizona. 

From 1864 to 1883, steamboats made regular trips up the Colorado 
River from Port Isabel, Sonora and, after the arrival of the railroad 
from Yuma, Arizona, stopping at Hardyville regularly to deliver supplies to 
the mines of the surrounding mining districts and those to the east in the 
interior of Arizona and carry out their ore for processing and sale. 
These stern-wheeler riverboats played an important part in the early 
development of the areas bordering the Colorado River and Hardyville was 
considered the low water limit of navigation for the steamboats. Steamboat 
travel above that point to places in like El Dorado Canyon, Callville and 
later Rioville was possible only during the few months of the late spring to 
early summer flood caused by snow melt in the upper Colorado River 
watershed. Hardyville was the starting point for wagon roads and pack 
trails to the mines and other settlements in the upper region of the river. It 
was also the port for flatboats that ascended the river as far as Callville in 
the extreme low water time of the year. 

In April 1866, Brevet Brigadier General James Fowler Rusling visited 
the settlement and described it: 
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“Hardyville itself was then more of a name than place, consisting 
chiefly of a warehouse and quartz-mill, with a few adobe shanties. Near 
Hardyville, some ten or twenty miles away in the outlying mountains, there  

were several mines—gold, silver, and copper—of more or less richness, 
and the mill was located here to take advantage of the two great essentials, 
wood and water. The mill, however, was standing idle, like most enterprises 
in Arizona, and but little was doing in the mines.” 

Hardyville received a boost in 1867, when it became the county seat 
of Mohave County and the mills at Eldorado Canyon began operating 
stimulating trade up river again. Hardyville had a population of 20 in 
1870. The 1870s saw a population boom in Hardyville as mining became 
more profitable. With the end of hostilities with the Native Americans in 
Mohave County, mines in the interior boomed again and the small town 
later grew with the addition of the construction of a general store, a saloon, 
a blacksmith shop, a billiard hall, and a respectable public hall. 

However, in 1873, the county seat was moved to the mining 
boomtown of Cerbat. In 1877, the Southern Pacific Railroad arrived at 
Yuma. It bought out Johnson's Colorado Steam Navigation Company, and 
by 1878 had built rails into Maricopaville resulting in wagon traffic moving to 
that railhead that was closer to the mines in the northern interior than 
Hardyville. Traffic on the road to the interior mines of the east from 
Hardyville waned except for that to Cerbat, Mineral Park, and Chloride. In 
May 1881, Issac Polhamus, captain of one of the Southern Pacific-owned 
Colorado Steam Navigation Company steamboats, went into competition 
with Hardy for the trade to those mines establishing Polhamus Landing, a 
rival landing five miles upriver, closer to the mines, taking away most of its 
river trade. Worse yet, the construction of the Atlantic and Pacific 
Railroad to its bridge crossing on the Colorado River near Needles, in May 
1883, saw the remaining interior mining trade move away from the 
Colorado River and Hardyville. The Hardyville post office was discontinued 
in favor of the one in Mohave City on February 19, 1883. As the silver price 
declined in the late 1880s and early 1890s, the Hardyville mill, its only 
remaining economic resource, became idle and the remaining population of 
the town left, leaving it to become a ghost town. Hardyville still appears with 
that name on a September 1911 reprint of a U. S. Geological Survey, 
Reconnaissance Map, Arizona, Nevada, California, Camp Mohave Sheet, 
Edition of March 1892.  
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Hardyville Pioneer Cemetery, a small 
cemetery, now a historic landmark, is 
the most significant existing remnant of 
Hardyville located on a high bluff above 
Highway 95 across from the Safeway 
supermarket.  

Believed to be lost to the annuls 
of time, many of those buried in the 
cemetery have been re-identified 

through the work and dedication of Vicki Salyer of the Colorado River 
Historical Society and the Fort Mohave National Society Daughters of the 
American Revolution.   Those confirmed to be buried at the cemetery are: 
Johnny Killian, Bill Boone, Thomas McCall, William Brown, G.E. Mathews, 
Wm. I. Tuttle, John O’Donald, Thomas Gillan, John Libby, Samuel Todd, 
and A.O. Perkins. 

Several plaques and monuments are dedicated to the cemetery by 
local entities and can be viewed there.   

 

HARDYVILLE POST OFFICE 
MOHAVE COUNTY, ARIZONA 

Name Title Date Appointed 

William H. Hardy Postmaster 01/17/1865 

Wooster M. Hardy Postmaster 06/07/1865 

A. E. Davis Postmaster 06/12/1867 

Enoch M. McCarty Postmaster 12/04/1868 

 
Discontinued on June 15, 1869 

Reestablished on January 13, 1870 

Wooster M. Hardy Postmaster 01/13/1870 

 
Discontinued on February 13, 1883; mail to Mohave City. 
 

Data provided by the Historical Archives of the USPS, Washington, D.C. 


